
Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Date:   Friday, 1 July 2016
:

Committee: 
Environment and Services Scrutiny Committee

Date: Monday, 11 July 2016
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, 
Shropshire, SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. 
The Agenda is attached

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of Environment and Services Scrutiny Committee
Vince Hunt (Chairman)
Keith Roberts (Vice Chairman)
Dean Carroll
Ted Clarke
Nigel Hartin

Roger Hughes
Christian Lea
Pamela Moseley
Vivienne Parry
Arthur Walpole

Your Committee Officer is: 

Tim Ward  Committee Officer
Tel:  01743 257713
Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk



AGENDA
1 Apologies for absence and substitutions 

2 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

3 Minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2016 

To consider the Minutes of the Environment and Services Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 13 June 2016.  (To Follow)

4 Public Question Time 

To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has 
been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.Deadline for notification for 
this meeting is 5.00pm on 6 June 2016

5 Member Question Time 

To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given notice.  
Deadline for notification for this meeting is 5.00pm on 6 June 2016

6 Portfolio Holder Update 

To receive an update from the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Housing, 
Regulatory Services and Environment

7 Update on Libraries Activity 

Report to follow

8 Defra Waste Contract Management visit 

To receive a verbal update from the Waste Contracts Manager



9 Outdoor Partnerships Update (Pages 1 - 14)

This report provides an update on the review of the Outdoor Partnerships team 
and the work carried out in the development of a future Sustainable Business 
Model for the Service

10 Date/Time of next meeting 

The Committee is next scheduled to meet on Monday 5 September 2016 at 
2.00pm





Scrutiny
Environment & Services
Scrutiny
11th July 2016

Item

9
Public

OUTDOOR PARTNERSHIPS UPDATE

Responsible Officer: Clare Fildes, Outdoor Partnerships Enterprise Manager
Email: Clare.fildes@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 255067

1. Summary

This report provides an update on the review of the Outdoor Partnerships team and the work 
carried out in the development of a future Sustainable Business Model for the Service

2. Decision

Members of Environment and Services Scrutiny Committee are asked to:

A. Note the recent changes within the Team and to scrutinise the work being undertaken to 
develop a Sustainable Business Model for the Service

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

Parks, Countryside Heritage Sites and the RoW network are very important to quality of life, the 
local economy and for wildlife and heritage. They provide a wide range of benefits for people and 
the environment. Aside from the wildlife and historical value, they are important local and regional 
recreation facilities.  These assets also provide a boost to the local economy.

4. Financial Implications

Shropshire Council announced its 3 year Funding Strategy covering the period 2016/17 through to 
2018/19 on 27th January 2016. The budget years for 2017/18 and 2018/19 were at the time for 
noting, however in order to achieve a balanced budget, should alternative funding streams not be 
found, then the worst case scenario was highlighted – this included a range of service areas 
including Country Parks, Countryside Heritage Sites and urban greenspaces having their budgets 
reduced to nil.  

Rights of Way was identified as a mandatory service.

An alternative approach has now been agreed that retains the Country Parks and Countryside 
Heritage Sites within the Council, safeguarding the sites for the future by generating more income 
and working towards a cost neutral position. The target is to raise £115,000 in 2017/18 increasing 
to £173,000 by 2019/20. If this target is not met, the Parks & Countryside Sites will continue to be 
at risk. The implications of this approach are shown below.



Meeting, date:  Report heading

2

5. Background

The Team has recently restructured following voluntary redundancy of the Outdoor Partnerships 
Manager.  As of 1st July, Clare Fildes has been appointed as the new service lead in the role of 
Outdoor Partnerships Enterprise Manager.  The new service structure is attached at Appendix 1

A key responsibility for the Team Managers over the next 3 – 4 years will be to continue to embed 
commercial thinking within the team and to substantially grow income generation within their 
respective areas as a response to proposed budget reductions.  This includes commercial income 
generation from groundworks, but also for the Parks and Sites Team, implementation of the 
Enterprise Plan to counter significant budget reductions for this Team.

6. The future of our Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites – Enterprise Plan

The Outdoor Partnership Service is currently responsible for the management, maintenance and 
community engagement of 120 parks and greenspaces (Originally 145 sites, however, 25 local 
greenspaces are now transferred to Shrewsbury and Bridgnorth Town Councils and are no longer 
part of the Ringway grounds maintenance contract). These sites can be categorised as urban 
greenspaces, country parks and countryside heritage sites.

Urban Greenspace.
The urban greenspaces are the recreational open spaces used by the local community and include 
55 play areas and 5 recreation grounds with football and cricket pitches and 37 other urban 
greenspaces. The maintenance of all these sites form part of the Ringway grounds maintenance 
contract.  

The management of urban greenspaces is being transferred to the Highways Street Scene Team, 
who already maintain amenity greenspaces and highway verges through a contract with Ringway. 
The Play and Maintenance Officers and the budget for this will be transferred by 1st July 2016. The 
ownership and management of urban greenspaces will then form part of the wider discussions with 
Town and Parish Councils that includes libraries, museums and leisure centres. This has been 
necessary to focus Outdoor Partnerships staff on generating income for the Country Parks and 
Countryside Heritage Sites.

Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites
Having submitted a new Enterprise Plan for the Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites, it 
has been agreed that these will remain with Shropshire Council, with an ambitious plan to raise 
income to manage these sites, reducing the contribution from the Council over the next few years. 
These sites are being considered as a complete portfolio, thus retaining staff expertise and 
safeguarding them for future generations.

The Country Parks and Heritage Sites are those sites with specific natural and cultural heritage 
features, including designations such as Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), Scheduled 
Ancient Monuments and Local Nature Reserves. These sites are major assets to the local 
community, with local people taking great pride in their parks, many of whom join our ‘Friends of 
Park Groups’ to volunteer their time to help look after the site and help raise funds and apply for 
small grants to develop projects. The sites are also used by a wider audience, however, attracting 
visitors from across the county and beyond. A map showing these sites is attached in Appendix 2.

The sites require specialist management, which is provided by our Country Park and Heritage Site 
Officers, whose role is to: 

• Develop and implement site management plans
• Undertake/oversee repairs and maintenance 
• Oversee external contractors



Meeting, date:  Report heading

3

• Undertake regular site checks to comply with H&S legislation
• Develop projects 
• Provide planning advice
• Apply for grant aid to support park development
• Provide habitat advice and guidance 
• To work with local communities and support volunteering activities

The plan has modelled income generation based on the following:

 Introducing car parking charges
 Town and Parish Council contributions
 New membership scheme
 Development of the Shropshire’s Great Outdoors Foundation to encourage charitable giving
 More externally funded projects
 Shropshire Outdoors Contracting and Consultancy
 Expansion and upgrade of facilities at Severn Valley Country Park and The Mere
 Development of a wood fuel business

There may well be alternative sources of income and the Outdoor Partnership Team will be 
consulting with Shropshire Councillors, Town and Parish Councils, volunteer and ‘Friends of’ 
groups and local people to agree plans for raising the required income from individual sites.

Shropshire Outdoor Contracting and Consulting - Rights of Way
In addition to the Enterprise Plan the work also carries on to gain additional income for the 
maintenance of the Rights of Way network.

A business case was agreed in November 2014 recommending that the Rights of Way (ROW) 
Maintenance team develop their current activity in generating income to assist in closing the 
funding gap created by the withdrawal of ROW capital budgets and the ongoing impact of reduced 
ROW revenue budgets.  It was agreed that earned income should be placed within a service 
reserve account to build up funds over a period of time could then be reinvested into work on major 
capital schemes outside of the existing revenue budgets.  Over the last 12 months this new 
approach has been successful, with £74,000 transferred into the new reserve account to put back 
into ROW maintenance.  However the ability to achieve more income by using the existing team 
was not sustainable.  As envisaged in the original business case, to achieve more, we needed to 
invest in this approach for the future.

In addition, the results of the final 25 bridge inspections have now been received to update the list 
of known capital problems (50 bridges now surveyed). The current estimate of the value of 
outstanding works is £650,000 (with £280,000 being high priority).  Further re-inspections are 
programmed for the 50 bridges which will alter the value of the estimate, in addition further issues 
are being identified which will be added to this list.

It was therefore vital that the new way of working was fully implemented, in a way that ensures that 
the risks are properly managed, and that the council’s statutory duties and the volunteer input that 
supports this work are not neglected.  A further Business case was made and agreed and as such 
we have now a team in place that can further grow income generation as well as cover the costs of 
the revised investment.  In addition, the service can now support maintenance on the Parks and 
Countryside sites that is currently undertaken by higher cost external contractors. 

Shropshire Outdoor Contracting and Consulting will ensure that at least £40,000 income is secured 
each year for the ROW maintenance programme on an ongoing basis.  The income will be used to 
support higher cost ‘capital’ type works within the existing programme. Any additional income will 
supplement reduced budgets across the Service. 



Meeting, date:  Report heading

4

Shropshire Hill AONB Partnership
Following a period of consultation, Shropshire Council and the Shropshire Hills AONB Partnership 
will be working together to develop a new independent organisation for the Shropshire Hills AONB. 
In developing new approaches both organisations will continue to work closely with local 
stakeholders, Telford & Wrekin Council, Defra, Natural England and the National Association for 
AONBs.

7 Alternative Options and Appraisal

A number of options for the management of Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites have 
been considered including:
1. Cease management of Council owned Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites, 

making staff redundant
2. All Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites to be sold to another Public or Third 

Sector provider.
3. All Country Parks & Countryside Heritage Sites to be maintained by another provider
4. Council to retain parks and sites management to provide minimum mandatory service 

(without Visitor Centres, education, events or volunteer support).
5. Greenspace transferred to Environmental Maintenance and Council to retain parks and 

sites management, including visitor centres to provide a minimum appropriate service, but 
with a new charitable arm, more income generation and development funding sourced from 
elsewhere. 

6. Development of new charitable organisation outside the Council for Parks and Sites, RoW, 
and health initiatives

Option 5 was agreed as the preferred option for a number of reasons:
 Ability to access alternative sources of funding; donations, legacies, income, sponsorship 

and grants, with minimum set up costs for the charitable organisation.
 The parks and sites have been reducing the Council contribution over the past few years 

and this will continue, working towards a cost-neutral position. 
 Council contributions will need to continue, tapering to £45,000 in 2019/20.
 Site ownership is secure for the future.
 Keeps good quality, well maintained sites open to the public. 
 Staff and expertise retained.
 No time consuming transfers or associated costs.
 No endowment funding needed 
 Focus on health and wellbeing to help reduce Adult Social Care funding.

8. Conclusions

Development of the service in house, working towards a cost-neutral position regarding 
controllable costs, is the preferred option. It is the most cost effective option for the Council as 
there is no large dowry or ongoing contribution for a long term lease required. Option 5 reduces 
costs over time and the Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites Enterprise Plan shows how 
this option would be delivered to ensure that income across the service increases by £173K in four 
years, reducing the Council contribution to £49K. 

The Outdoor Partnerships team would work together to develop income earning and external 
funding synergistically across Country Parks and Countryside Heritage Sites, Rights of Way 
management, Mapping and Enforcement, Shropshire Outdoor Contracting and Healthy Outdoors. 
Across the service, this will build on community engagement, volunteering and outdoor activities to 
ensure access to and enjoyment of the great outdoors in Shropshire is safeguarded for the future.



Meeting, date:  Report heading

5

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 
include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
Cllr Stuart West Portfolio Holder for Leisure & Culture

Local Member
County wide – all members

Conflicts of interest declared by members

Appendices
Appendix 1 - New service structure Appendix 2 - A map of Country Parks & Countryside 
Heritage sites 





Outdoor Partnerships July 2016

TeamMark Blount
Country Parks & Sites 

Manager

Parks & Countryside 
Heritage Sites 
management 
Habitat management
Greenspace contract
Play and site inspections 
and Play maintenance
Alternative Management 
and commissioning for 
sites
Visitor centre, events & 
activities
Friends Groups, & 
management committees
Wild Teams
Volunteering 
Health & Safety
Risk management
Complaints & negotiations 
Project delivery & 
management
Contracting and 
Procurement
S106 negotiations
Planning applications 
MANDATORY

Richard Knight
Countryside Maintenance 

Manager

Public Rights of Way 
management and 
maintenance 
Sites maintenance
Landowner compliance and 
negotiations
Complaints & inspections
Parish Paths Partnerships 
Volunteering
Area based ROW 
Management
Capital schemes – bridges 
and surfaces
Contracting and Procurement
Income generation - external
Internal Commissioning
Customer support
Planning applications and 
consultations
Project delivery & 
management
Health & Safety & Risk 
Management
Promoted routes 
Customer support
Commercial approach
MANDATORY

Clare Fildes
Outdoor Partnerships Enterprise 

Manager
Strategic direction 
Developing wider partnerships 
Commercial thinking
Enterprise Plan
Enterprising approaches
Income generation
External Funding
Project development, bids & 
delivery
New funding and investment 
opportunity
ROW and Parks & sites policy and 
strategy
Working with local communities. 
Performance Monitoring
Marketing & promotion 
Line Management of service 
Managers
Finance 
Overview of the devolved 
budgets
Day to day management of 
Health & Economy Team
 Active volunteering 
 Walking for Health
 Partnership support
 Publications and Websites
 Community projects
 Websites
 Leader Programme & 

Projects
 Work of AONB Partnership 

& Team
EXTERNALLY FUNDED

Shona Butter
ROW Mapping & 

Enforcement Manager

Definitive Mapping
Definitive Map – legal 
orders
PPO Orders
TCPA Orders
ROW Enforcement
Closures and Road Traffic 
Orders
Database management
Mapping & Information
CAMS/GIS
Customer complaints & 
support
Planning applications and 
consultations 
Land Charge Searches 
Condition Surveys
Web and information
Finance & Administration
Local Access Forum
Stakeholders
Countryside Access 
Strategy
Policy development
Open Access land
MANDATORY

Phil Holden
Shropshire Hills 
AONB Manager



Parks & Sites Team

Ed Andrews 
Country Parks and Sites Officer South

Shaun Burkey
Country Parks and Sites Officer North

Mark Blount
Country Parks & Sites Team Manager

James Brookes
Assistant Country 

Parks & Sites 
Officer 

TBC
Assistant Country 

Parks & Sites 
Officer

Probation Project

Mike Simmons
Play & 

Maintenance 
Officer

Maelor Owen
Play & 

Maintenance 
Officer P/T

Susie Comaish
SVCP Centre 

Manager

Tim Hunter
Mere Site 

Assistant P/T



Paul Butter
Contracts Development 

Officer

Richard Knight
Countryside Maintenance Manager

Andy Lipa/Harvey 
Morgan

Area ROW Officer 
(Job Share)

Tim Simmons
Area ROW 

Officer

David Hardwick
Area ROW 

Officer 

Helen Beresford
Parish Paths 

Partnership Officer

TBC
Assistant 

Maintenance 
Officer (student 

placement)

Robert Purcell
Matt France

Stephen Mayger
Steven Caldwell
Tom Llewellyn

Countryside Maintenance Officers

Countryside Maintenance Team



ROW Mapping & Enforcement Team

Emily Harrison
Rights of Way Officer 

(Legal orders & 
Enforcement)

Shona Butter
ROW Mapping & Enforcement Manager 

Lucy McFarlane
Rights of Way Officer 

(Legal orders & 
Enforcement) P/T

Jean Jones
Mapping & 

Enforcement Legal 
Officer P/T

TBC
Support Officer P/T



Health & Economy Team

Walking for Health
Helen D’Albert

WfH Coordinator South
Liz Evans

WfH Coordinator North
Mick Dunn

WfH Coordinator Central

Pete Banford
Shropshire Hills LEADER 

Programme Manager

Clare Fildes
Health & Economy Team

TBC
Leader Support Officer

Simon Brown
Shropshire Wild 

Team Officer





The Mere at Ellesmere

Poles Coppice

Nesscliffe & The Cliffe

Colemere Countryside Heritage site

Severn Valley Country Park

Lyth Hill Countryside Site

Stanmore Camp

Brown Moss Countryside Heritage Site

Nesscliffe & The Cliffe

Bog Mine

Ifton Meadows Local Nature Reserve

Merrington Green

Severn Valley Country Park

Oswestry Old Racecourse Common

Llanymynech Heritage Area

Snailbeach Mine

Steel Heath

Eardington Nature Reserve

Wollerton

Corbet Wood Countryside Heritage Site

Severn Valley Country Park

Whitchurch Country Park

Hodnet Countryside Site

Donington and Albrighton LNR

­

The Shirehall, Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND

Scale: 1:350,000
Title: Country Parks & Heritage Sites

map produced by on /08 K:user groups.countryside/provate/projects/  .mxd

(c) Crown copyright (2016) 100049049.

This is not the legal definitive map. It is a working copy only. For information purposes only.




	Agenda
	9 Outdoor Partnerships Update
	Appendix 1 - Outdoor Partnerships Service Structure July 2016
	Appendix 2- Country Parks & Heritage Sites map for scrutiny


